FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Year Ended February 28, 2022

Continuous de la continuo de la cont
1

Table of Contents

February 28, 2022

Independent Auditor's Report	
Management's Discussion and Analysis	;
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Government-wide Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position	
Statement of Activities	11
Fund Financial Statements	12
Governmental Funds	
Balance Sheet	
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position	13
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances	14
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of	15
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	16
Proprietary Funds	10
Statement of Net Position	47
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position	17 18
Statement of Cash Flows	19
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	21
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION	
Budgetary Comparison Schedules	
General Fund	07
Major Street Fund	37
Library Fund	40 41
	41
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION	
Nonmajor Governmental Funds	
Combining Balance Sheet	43
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Ralances	4.4

Phone (616) 583-0094 Email: doug@wohlbergcpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Village Council Village of Schoolcraft

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Village of Schoolcraft, as of and for the year ended February 28, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Village of Schoolcraft basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Village of Schoolcraft, as of February 28, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Village of Schoolcraft, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Village of Schoolcraft's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

Independent Auditor's Report, continued To the Village Council Village of Schoolcraft

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
 design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
 evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Village of Schoolcraft's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
 made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
 doubt about the Village of Schoolcraft's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Village of Schoolcraft's basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Douglas Wohlberg, CPA Byron Center, Michigan

Doylas Welley

August 24, 2022

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the year ended February 28, 2022

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Village's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. There are two government-wide statements: the statement of net position and the statement of activities.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Village's assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources with the difference between them presented as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Village is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., arbitrage rebate owed but not due until a future year and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Village include general government, public safety, public works, community and economic development, and recreation and culture. The business-type activities of the Village include water operations.

The government-wide financial statements include only Village of Schoolcraft.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended February 28, 2022

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Village maintains seven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Major Streets Fund, and the Library Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.

The Village adopts annual legally appropriated budgets for all of its Governmental Funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund, Major Streets Fund, and the Library Fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 13 - 16 of this report.

The Village maintains one proprietary fund, the Water Fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Village uses its enterprise fund to account for its utility operations. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 17 - 19 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 21 of this report.

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the year ended February 28, 2022

The Village as a Whole

The Village's combined net position increased by \$325,635 from a year ago, from \$5,094,185 to \$5,419,820.

Unrestricted net position for the governmental activities, the part of governmental net position that can be used to finance day to day operations, increased by \$384,610 to \$1,068,917. This represents an increase of approximately 56%. Unrestricted net position for our governmental activities is about 87% of governmental expenses. This is within the targeted range set by the Village Council during its last budget process.

Following is a summary of the Statement of Net Position.

	Governmen	ntal Activities	Business-t	ype Activities	T	otal
	2022	2021	2022	2021	2022	2021
Assets:						
Current assets	\$ 2,292,836	\$ 2,075,621	\$ 565,013	\$ 411,055	\$ 2,857,849	\$ 2,486,676
Noncurrent assets	1,778,919	1,789,638	1,280,681	1,322,599	3,059,600	3,112,237
Total assets	4,071,755	3,865,259	1,845,694	1,733,654	5,917,449	5,598,913
Liabilities:						
Long-term debt outstanding	349,573	415,866	9,398	8,648	358,971	424,514
Other liabilities	130,418	68,678	8,240	11,536	138,658	80,214
Total liabilities	479,991	484,544	17,638	20,184	497,629	504,728
Net position:						
Net investment in capital						
assets	1,472,480	1,789,638	1,280,681	1,322,599	2,753,161	3,112,237
Restricted	1,050,367	906,770	_		1,050,367	906,770
Unrestricted	1,068,917	684,307	547,375	390,871	1,616,292	1,075,178
Total net position	\$ 3,591,764	\$ 3,380,715	\$ 1,828,056	\$ 1,713,470	\$ 5,419,820	\$ 5,094,185

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the year ended February 28, 2022

The following table shows the changes of net position as of February 28, 2022.

Program revenues Charges for services 15,383 14,277 326,687 \$ 305,921 \$ 342,070 \$ 320,198 Operating grants 339,657 334,713 - - 339,657 334,713 Capital grants - 144,205 - - - 144,205 General revenues 878,319 861,107 - - 878,319 861,107 State-shared revenues 180,858 154,810 - - 180,858 154,810 Franchise fees 10,575 10,716 - - 10,575 10,716 Unrestricted investment income 4,621 5,111 908 576 5,529 5,687 Intergovernmental 3,934 14,609 - - 3,334 14,609 Miscellaneous 9,867 422 600 5,250 10,467 5,672 Capital Contributions - - 15,000 - 15,000 - Expenses - - 15,399		Governme	ntal Activities	Business-t	ype Activities	To	otal
Charges for services Operating grants 15,383 14,277 336,687 305,921 342,070 320,188 Operating grants 339,657 334,713 - - 339,657 334,713 Capital grants 1 144,205 - - 339,657 334,713 Capital grants 1 144,205 - - 339,657 334,713 Capital grants 1 144,205 - - 878,319 861,107 State-shared revenues 180,858 154,810 - - 10,575 10,716 Franchise fees 10,575 10,716 - - 10,575 10,716 Unrestricted investment income 4,621 5,111 908 576 5,529 5,687 Intergovernmental 3,934 14,609 - - 3,934 14,609 Miscellaneous 9,867 422 600 5,250 10,467 5,672 Capital Contributions - - 15,000 -						2022	2021
Charges for services Operating grants 15,383 14,277 336,687 305,921 342,070 320,188 Operating grants 339,657 334,713 - - 339,657 334,713 Capital grants 1 144,205 - - 339,657 334,713 Capital grants 1 144,205 - - 339,657 334,713 Capital grants 1 144,205 - - 878,319 861,107 State-shared revenues 180,858 154,810 - - 10,575 10,716 Franchise fees 10,575 10,716 - - 10,575 10,716 Unrestricted investment income 4,621 5,111 908 576 5,529 5,687 Intergovernmental 3,934 14,609 - - 3,934 14,609 Miscellaneous 9,867 422 600 5,250 10,467 5,672 Capital Contributions - - 15,000 -	Program revenues						
Capital grants - 144,205 - - 144,205 General revenues 878,319 861,107 - 878,319 861,107 State-shared revenues 180,858 154,810 - - 180,858 154,810 Franchise fees 10,575 10,716 - - 10,575 10,716 Unrestricted investment income 4,621 5,111 908 576 5,529 5,687 Intergovernmental 3,934 14,609 - - 3,934 14,609 Miscellaneous 9,867 422 600 5,250 10,467 5,672 Capital Contributions - - 15,000 - 15,000 - Total revenues 1,443,214 1,539,970 343,195 311,747 1,786,409 1,851,717 Expenses S 2 2 1,000 - 2 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,	Charges for services	\$ 15,383	3 \$ 14,277	\$ 326,687	\$ 305,921	\$ 342,070	\$ 320,198
General revorues Property taxes 878,319 861,107 - - 878,319 861,107 State-shared revenues 180,858 154,810 - - 180,858 154,810 Franchise fees 10,575 10,716 - - 10,575 10,716 Unrestricted investment income 4,621 5,111 908 576 5,529 5,687 Intergovernmental 3,934 14,609 - - 3,934 14,609 Miscellaneous 9,867 422 600 5,250 10,467 5,672 Capital Contributions - - 15,000 - 15,000 - Total revenues 1,443,214 1,539,970 343,195 311,747 1,786,409 1,851,717 Expenses General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety	Operating grants	339,657	334,713	-	-	339,657	334,713
Property taxes 878,319 861,107 - 878,319 861,107 State-shared revenues 180,858 154,810 - - 180,858 154,810 Franchise fees 10,575 10,716 - - 10,575 10,716 Unrestricted investment income 4,621 5,111 908 576 5,529 5,687 Intergovernmental 3,934 14,609 - - 3,934 14,609 Miscellaneous 9,867 422 600 5,250 10,467 5,672 Capital Contributions - - 15,000 - 15,000 - Total revenues 1,443,214 1,539,970 343,195 311,747 1,786,409 1,851,717 Expenses General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 249,548 257,346 Public works 271,053 262,932	Capital grants	-	144,205	-	-	-	144,205
State-shared revenues 180,858 154,810 - - 180,858 154,810 Franchise fees 10,575 10,716 - - 10,575 10,716 Unrestricted investment income 4,621 5,111 908 576 5,529 5,687 Intergovernmental 3,934 14,609 - - 3,934 14,609 Miscellaneous 9,867 422 600 5,250 10,467 5,672 Capital Contributions - - 15,000 - 15,000 - Total revenues 1,443,214 1,539,970 343,195 311,747 1,786,409 1,851,717 Expenses General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 249,548 257,346 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48	General revenues						
Franchise fees 10,575 10,716 - - 10,575 10,716 Unrestricted investment income 4,621 5,111 908 576 5,529 5,687 Intergovernmental 3,934 14,609 - - 3,934 14,609 Miscellaneous 9,867 422 600 5,250 10,467 5,672 Capital Contributions - - 15,000 - 15,000 - Total revenues 1,443,214 1,539,970 343,195 311,747 1,786,409 1,851,717 Expenses General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 224,548 257,346 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,4	Property taxes	878,319	861,107	-	-	878,319	861,107
Unrestricted investment income 4,621 5,111 908 576 5,529 5,687 Intergovernmental 3,934 14,609 - - 3,934 14,609 Miscellaneous 9,867 422 600 5,250 10,467 5,672 Capital Contributions - - 15,000 - 15,000 - Total revenues 1,443,214 1,539,970 343,195 311,747 1,786,409 1,851,717 Expenses General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 224,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 233,422 189,312 Interest on long-term debt	State-shared revenues	180,858	3 154,810	-	-	180,858	154,810
income 4,621 5,111 908 576 5,529 5,687 Intergovernmental 3,934 14,609 - - 3,934 14,609 Miscellaneous 9,867 422 600 5,250 10,467 5,672 Capital Contributions - - 15,000 - 15,000 - Total revenues 1,443,214 1,539,970 343,195 311,747 1,786,409 1,851,717 Expenses General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 420,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 233,422 189,312 Interest on long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - <td>Franchise fees</td> <td>10,575</td> <td>5 10,716</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>10,575</td> <td>10,716</td>	Franchise fees	10,575	5 10,716	-	-	10,575	10,716
Intergovernmental Miscellaneous 3,934 P,867 14,609 P,867 - 3,934 P,867 14,609 P,867 - 3,934 P,867 14,609 P,867 - 3,000 P,867	Unrestricted investment						
Miscellaneous Capital Contributions 9,867 422 600 5,250 10,467 5,672 Capital Contributions - - 15,000 - 15,000 - Total revenues 1,443,214 1,539,970 343,195 311,747 1,786,409 1,851,717 Expenses Seneral government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 420,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976			•		576	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-
Capital Contributions - - 15,000 - 15,000 - Total revenues 1,443,214 1,539,970 343,195 311,747 1,786,409 1,851,717 Expenses General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 420,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net	_	•	•		-		•
Total revenues 1,443,214 1,539,970 343,195 311,747 1,786,409 1,851,717 Expenses General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 420,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 420,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 420,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 48,800 41,187 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 36		9,867	422			•	5,672
Expenses General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 420,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 233,422 189,312 Interest on long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior perio	Capital Contributions	-			·		-
General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 420,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 233,422 189,312 Interest on long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment	Total revenues	1,443,214	1,539,970	343,195	311,747	1,786,409	1,851,717
General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 420,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 233,422 189,312 Interest on long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment							
General government 249,548 257,346 - - 249,548 257,346 Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 420,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 233,422 189,312 Interest on long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment	Expenses						
Public safety 420,546 418,488 - - 420,546 418,488 Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 233,422 189,312 Interest on long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380	•	249,548	3 257,346	_	-	249,548	257,346
Public works 271,053 262,932 - - 271,053 262,932 Community and economic development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 233,422 189,312 Interest on long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148	-	420,546	418,488	-	-	420,546	418,488
development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 233,422 189,312 Interest on long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148		271,053	3 262,932	-	-	271,053	262,932
development 48,800 41,187 - - 48,800 41,187 Recreation and culture 233,422 189,312 - - 233,422 189,312 Interest on long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148	Community and economic						
Interest on long-term debt 8,796 9,773 - - 8,796 9,773 Water Fund - - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148		48,800	41,187	-	-		•
Water Fund - - 228,609 224,938 228,609 224,938 Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148	Recreation and culture	233,422	2 189,312	-	-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Total expenses 1,232,165 1,179,038 228,609 224,938 1,460,774 1,403,976 Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148	Interest on long-term debt	8,796	9,773	-	-		
Change in net position 211,049 360,932 114,586 86,809 325,635 447,741 Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148	Water Fund	-		228,609	224,938	228,609	224,938
Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148	Total expenses	1,232,165	5 1,179,038	228,609	224,938	1,460,774	1,403,976
Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148							
Net position-beginning 3,388,419 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,101,889 4,654,148 Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148	Change in net position	211.049	360.932	114.586	86,809	325,635	447,741
Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148	Change in het position	211,1011	***************************************				
Prior period adjustment (7,704) - - (7,704) - Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148	** 4	0.000.444	2 007 407	4 749 470	1 606 661	E 404 000	4 6E 4 1 4 Q
Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148	Net position-beginning	3,388,418	3,021,401	1,713,470	1,020,001	5,101,009	4,004,140
Net position-restated 3,380,715 3,027,487 1,713,470 1,626,661 5,094,185 4,654,148							
	Prior period adjustment	(7,704	4) -	-	-	(7,704)	-
	Net position-restated	3,380,71	3,027,487	1,713, <u>4</u> 70	1,626,661	5,094,185	4,654,148
	Net position-ending				•••	\$ 5,419,820	\$ 5,101,889

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the year ended February 28, 2022

Financial Analysis of the Village's Funds

As noted earlier, the Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Village's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Village's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Village's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of \$1,938,734, an increase of \$157,732 from the prior year. Of the \$1,938,734, \$887,165 is reported in the General Fund.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was \$869,517. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 96% of total General Fund expenditures of \$904,606. The fund balance of the Village's General Fund increased by \$13,993 during the current fiscal year.

The Major Street Fund is used to account for Michigan Transportation Fund revenue that is restricted to be used for the maintenance and construction of the Village's major streets. At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance was \$564,030, an increase of \$98,106 from the prior year.

The Local Street Fund is used to account for Michigan Transportation Fund revenue that is restricted to be used for the maintenance and construction of the Village's local streets. At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance was \$112,969, an increase of \$39,501 from the prior year.

The Downtown Development Authority Fund is used to account for captured property tax revenue that is restricted to be used for the economic development of the downtown district. At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance was \$61,541, an increase of \$3,968 from the prior year.

The Library Fund is used to account for property tax, contributions from other municipalities, penal fines, and other revenues that are restricted to be used to provide library services to Village residents. At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance was \$313,029, a increase of \$2,164 from the prior year.

Proprietary fund. The Village's proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Water Fund at the end of the year was \$547,375. The Water Fund had an increase in net position for the year of \$114,586.

The Village's Governmental Fund Budgets

The most significant amendments to the budgets of the Village's governmental funds follows. In the General Fund, the Manager's department budget was increased approximately \$6,000 to reflect changes in the allocation of the Manager's health insurance. The budget in the Clerk's department was decreased by approximately \$12,000 to reflect changes in the allocation of health insurance. The Treasurer's department budget was decreased approximately \$6,000 to reflect changes in the allocation of the Treasurer's health insurance. The Police Department budget was decreased approximately \$11,000 to reflect lower than expected salaries. The Department of Public Works budget was decreased approximately \$23,000 to reflect lower than expected salaries and health insurance expenses.

In the Major Streets Fund, construction of streets budget was increased approximately \$42,000 to reflect the completion of the Angell Street paving. The preservation of streets budget was decreased approximately \$14,000 to reflect less work than originally anticipated.

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the year ended February 28, 2022

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

At the end of 2022, the Village had \$3,059,600, net of accumulated depreciation, invested in a broad range of capital assets, including buildings, police equipment, streets and water infrastructure.

The following table shows the Village's capital assets compared to last year.

	G	overnmen	tal	Activities	B	usiness-ty	pe	Activities	Total		
		2022		2021		2022		2021	2022		2021
Land	\$	130,000	\$	130,000	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 130,000	\$	130,000
Land improvements		28,598		-		-		-	28,598		-
Buildings and improvements		791,127		825,292		447,240		470,002	1,238,367		1,295,294
Machinery and equipment		86,391		103,384		392		491	86,783		103,875
Furniture		2		2		-		-	2		2
Vehicles		54,073		26,059		-		-	54,073		26,059
Books		19,475		15,293		-		-	19,475		15,293
Infrastructure		669,253		689,608		-		-	669,253		689,608
Water system		-				833,049		852,106	833,049		852,106
Total capital assets	\$	1,778,919	\$	1,789,638	\$	1,280,681	\$	1,322,599	\$ 3,059,600	\$	3,112,237

Major additions this year include the following:

Library books	\$ 11,860
Widening Angell Street	41,988
DPW parking lot paving	29,998
2020 Ford Interceptor	46,185

Long-term debt activity is summarized as follows:

	eginning Balance	Δ	dditions	Re	ductions	Ending Balance		
Governmental Activities								
2017 Capital Improvement Refunding Bonds	\$ 355,000	\$	_	\$	50,000	\$ 305,000		
Capital Lease - copier	2,742		-		1,303	1,439		
Compensated absences	50,420		-		7,286	43,134		
Total governmental activities	\$ 408,162	\$	-	\$	58,589	\$ 349,573		
Businesses-type Activities								
Compensated absences	\$ 8,648	\$	750	\$		\$ 9,398		

Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended February 28, 2022

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The Village's General Fund fund balance is healthy, but in recent years it has been decreasing. While revenues had been increasing slowly over the years, expenditures had been increasing more quickly. The Village Council and management were aware of this. While the Village Council and management have little control over revenues, they have been working to understand what has been causing the more rapid increase in expenditures. In the year ended February 28, 2022, the Council and management implemented changes that resulted in an increase in the General Fund fund balance of \$13,993. These changes allowed the Village to maintain the health of the General Fund while continuing to provide a high level of service to the Village residents.

The Village received \$81,497.23 in American Rescue Plan Act funds on the first tranche and will get the second half of these funds in fiscal year 2023. The Village also applied for the Kalamazoo County ARPA funds but have not heard back if we have been chosen to receive any or not. The Village has purchased a high-efficiency HEPA HVAC unit for their Public Works department building. A sound system for the Council chambers is also an expenditure that will be made with the ARPA funds.

Funds are set aside through an equipment rental fund so that the Village is able to purchase capital items, such as heavy equipment vehicles, and to provide for the repair and maintenance of these items.

Contacting the Village's Management

This financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors with a general overview of the Village's finances and to show the Village's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, please feel free to contact the Village Manager's Office at the Village of Schoolcraft, 442 North Grand Street, Schoolcraft, Michigan, 49087. The Village's phone number is (269) 679-4304.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Position

February 28, 2022

	G	overnmental Activities	·" I	Business-type Activities		Total
ASSETS						
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	2,178,284	\$	471,603	\$	2,649,887
Receivables, net		41,031		74,082	•	115,113
Intergovernmental receivable		69,671		<u>.</u>		69,671
Interfund balances		(15,000)		15,000		_
Prepaids		18,850		4,328		23,178
Land		130,000		-		130,000
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation		1,648,919		1,280,681		2,929,600
Total assets	\$	4,071,755	\$	1,845,694	\$	5,917,449
LIABILITIES		44.445				
Accounts payable	\$	11,412	\$	7,890	\$	19,302
Accrued liabilities		9,294		350		9,644
Unearned revenue		81,497		-		81,497
Unavailable revenue		28,215		-		28,215
Noncurrent liabilities:		T. 100				
Due within one year		51,439		-		51,439
Due in more than one year		255,000		-		255,000
Compensated absences		43,134		9,398		52,532
Total liabilities		479,991		17,638		497,629
NET POSITION						
Net investment in capital assets		1,472,480		1,280,681		2,753,161
Restricted for:						
Streets		675,797		-		675,797
Library		313,029		-		313,029
Community development		61,541		-		61,541
Unrestricted		1,068,917		547,375		1,616,292
Total net position		3,591,764		1,828,056		5,419,820
Total liabilities and net position	\$	4,071,755	¢	1,845,694	œ	5,917,449

Statement of Activities

For the year ended February 28, 2022

	Expenses	Charges for Services	Operating Grants and Contributions	Capital Grants and Contributions	Governmental Activities	Business-type Activities	Totai
Driman, control							
rimaly government.							
Governmental activities:							
General government \$	249,548 \$	1	\$ 2,125	- \$	\$ (247,423)	' \$	\$ (247,423)
Public safety	420,546	13,345	13,033		(394,168)	,	(394,168)
Public works	271,053	•	303,381	ı	32,328	•	32,328
Community and economic development	48,800	•	ı	1	(48,800)	'	(48,800)
Recreation and culture	233,422	2,038	21,118	ı	(210,266)	'	(210,266)
Interest on long-term debt	8,796	•	-		(8,796)	- ((8,796)
Total governmental activities	1,232,165	15,383	339,657	•	(877,125)	1	(877,125)
Business-type activities:							
Water	228,609	326,687	•	-	I	98,078	98,078
Total primary government \$	1,460,774 \$	342,070	\$ 339,657	: : : :	(877,125)	98,078	(779,047)
General revenues:							
Property taxes					878,319	1	878,319
State shared revenue	inue				180,858	1	180,858
Franchise fees					10,575	1	10,575
Unrestricted investment income	stment income				4,621	806	5,529
Capital contributions	Suc				1	15,000	15,000
Intergovernmental	_				3,934	•	3,934
Gain/loss on sale of capital assets	of capital assets				3,760	ſ	3,760
Miscellaneous					6,107	009	6,707
Total general revenues and transfers	es and transfers				1,088,174	16,508	1,104,682
Change in net position	ü				211,049	114,586	325,635
Net position-beginning	໘				3,388,419	1,713,470	5,101,889
Prior period adjustment	snt				(7,704)	- ((7,704)
Net position-ending					3,380,715	1,713,470	5,094,185
Net position-ending					\$ 3,591,764	\$ 1,828,056	\$ 5,419,820

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet February 28, 2022

···		General	м	ajor Street		Library		Nonmajor Funds		Total
ASSETS		90110141	,,,	ujoi oli oot		Library		t unus		1 Otal
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	963,427	\$	534,654	\$	288,821	\$	164,584	\$	1,951,486
Receivables, net		12,580				27,344	•	1,107	ľ	41,03
Intergovernmental receivable		28,215		31,559		-		9 897		69,67°
Prepaids		17,648		620		_		582		18,850
Total assets	\$	1,021,870	\$	566,833	\$	316,165	\$		\$	2,081,038
LIABILITIES										
Accounts payable	\$	6,425	\$	2,704	\$	-	\$	1,660	\$	10,789
Accrued liabilities	·	3,568	·	99	Ċ	3,136	•	-	•	6,80
Due to other funds		15,000				-		-		15.000
Unearned revenue		81,497		_		-		_		81,497
Total liabilities	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	106,490		2,803		3,136		1.660		114,089
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES										
Unavailable revenue-state revenue		28,215		 -		-		-		28,215
FUND BALANCES										
Nonspendable:										
Prepaid items		17,648		620		_		582		18,850
Restricted for:										•
Streets		-		563,410		-		112,387		675,797
Library		_		-		313,029		-		313,029
Community development		•		-		-		61,541		61,541
Unassigned		869,517		-				<u>-</u>		869,517
Total fund balances		887,165		564,030		313,029		174,510		1,938,734
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances	\$		\$	566,833	\$	316,165	\$		\$	2,081,038

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position February 28, 2022

Total fund balances - governmental funds	\$ 1,938,734
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:	
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.	1,690,736
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of equipment rental activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.	314,358
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Balances at February 28, 2022 were:	
Long-term debt	(306,439)
Accrued interest	(2,491)
Compensated absences	(43,134)
Net position of governmental activities	\$ 3,591,764

Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the year ended February 28, 2022

		General	Ma	ior Street		Library	1	Nonmajor Funds		Tatal
REVENUES		<u>Jonotai</u>		ajor otreet		Library		runus		Total
Taxes	\$	675,832	\$	_	\$	175,417	¢	27,070	¢	878,319
Licenses and permits	•	24,754	Ψ.	_	Ψ	110,417	Ψ	21,010	Φ	24,754
State grants		193,024		184,408		5,190		57,923		440,545
Contributions from local units		-		-		6,801		-		6,801
Charges for services		11,699		-		1,088		_		12,787
Fines and forfeits		-		_		99		_		99
Interest and rents		2,214		608		1,352		83		4,257
Other revenue		2,316		-		10,451		443		13,210
Total revenues		909,839		185,016		200,398		85,519		1,380,772
EXPENDITURES										
Current:										
General government		233,075		-		-		-		233,075
Public safety		451,860		-		-		_		451,860
Public works		113,790		86,910		-		18,919		219,619
Community and economic										
development		24,954		-		-		23,131		48,085
Recreation and culture		22,230		-		196,424		-		218,654
Debt service		58,697		-		1,810		-		60,507
Total expenditures		904,606		86,910		198,234		42,050		1,231,800
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over										
expenditures		5,233		98,106		2,164		43,469		148,972
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)						·				
Sale of capital assets		3,760		_		_				3,760
Insurance recoveries		5,000		_		_		_		5,700 5,000
Total other financing sources (uses)		8,760								8,760
										0,700
Net change in fund balances		13,993		98,106		2,164		43,469		157,732
Fund balances-beginning		880,876		465,924		310,865		131,041	1	,788,706
Prior period adjustment		(7,704)		-		-		-		(7,704)
Fund balances-restated		873,172		465,924		310,865		131,041	1	,781,002
Fund balances-ending	\$	887,165	}	564,030	5	313,029	<u> </u>	174,510	_	

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended February 28, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds	\$	157,732
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:		
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. AddCapital outlay DeductDepreciation expense		100,033 (123,995)
(Increase) decrease in compensated absences		7,286
Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long term liabilities in the statement of net position.	-	51,303
Some expense reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds: Accrued interest		410
An internal service fund is used by management to charge the cost of equipment and vehicles to individual funds. The net revenue of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.		18,280
Change in net position of governmental activities	\$	211,049

Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Position February 28, 2022

		Water Fund		Governmental activities - nternal Service
ASSETS		YYALEI FUILU		Fund
Current assets:				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	471,603	\$	226,798
Accounts receivable	•	74,082	٧	220,130
Due from other funds		15,000		_
Prepaid items		4,328		-
Total current assets		565,013		226,798
Noncurrent assets:				
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation		1,280,681		88,183
Total assets	\$	1,845,694	\$	314,981
LIABILITIES Current liabilities: Accounts payable	\$	7,890	\$	623
Accrued liabilities	•	350	*	- 020
Total current liabilities		8,240		623
Noncurrent liabilities: Compensated absences payable		9,398		
Total liabilities		17,638		623
NET POSITION				
Net investment in capital assets		1,280,681		88,183
Unrestricted		547,375		226,175
Total net position		1,828,056		314,358
Total liabilities and net position	\$		\$	314,981

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the year ended February 28, 2022

			Government activities - Internal Servi			
	V	later Fund	Fund			
Operating revenues:						
Charges for services	\$	318,997	\$ 53,3	317		
Fees		7,690	-			
Total operating revenues		326,687	53,3	<u> 17</u>		
Operating expenses:						
Salaries		68,991	-			
Payroll taxes		5,733	_			
Employee benefits		12,356	-			
Supplies		19,510	5,0)59		
Contractual services		11,784	-			
Utilities		10,970	-			
Repairs		14,049	10,4	199		
Rent		8,102	-			
Depreciation		71,938	19,8	143		
Other		5,176	-			
Total operating expenses		228,609	35,4	01		
Operating income (loss)		98,078	17,9	116		
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):						
Interest		908	3	64		
Miscellaneous		600	-			
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)		1,508	3	64		
Income (loss) before contributions		99,586	18,2	80		
Contributed capital		15,000	-			
Commoded depiter		10,000				
Change in net position		114,586	18,2	:80		
Net position-beginning		1,713,470	296,0	78		
Net position-ending	\$	1,828,056	\$ 314,3	58		

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended February 28, 2022

			Governmental activities - Internal Service
	W	later Fund	Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES			
Receipts from customers	\$	307,631	\$ 53,317
Payments to suppliers		(92,438)	(15,379)
Payments to employees		(74,724)	
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities		140,469	37,938
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
Capital contributions		15,000	-
Purchase of capital assets		(30,020)	(33,086)
Other receipts (payments)		600	
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing			
activities		(14,420)	(33,086)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Interest and dividends		908	364
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		126,957	5,216
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year		344,646	221,582
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year	\$	471,603	
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities: Operating income (loss)	\$	98,077	\$ 17,916
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:	1		
Depreciation expense		71,938	19,843
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable		3,945	-
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds		(15,000)	-
((3,844)	-
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		6,677	179
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items		6,677 (1,972)	179 -
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items Increase (decrease) in accounts payable			179 - -
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items Increase (decrease) in accounts payable Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities		(1,972)	179 - - -
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items Increase (decrease) in accounts payable Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue		(1,972) (8,000)	179 - - - -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Village of Schoolcraft conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used by the Village of Schoolcraft.

A. Reporting Entity

The Village of Schoolcraft is governed by an elected seven-member Council. The Village operates under a President-Council form of government and provides the following services: public safety, public works, culture and recreation, and general administration services. In addition, the Village operates a water system.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, "The Financial Reporting Entity," these financial statements present the Village (the primary government). The criteria established by GASB for determining the reporting entity includes oversight responsibility, fiscal dependency, and whether the financial statements would be misleading if data were not included.

There are no other units that should be included in the financial statements.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment; and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenue.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized as soon as it is both measurable and available. Revenue is considered to be available if it is collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, expenditures relating to compensated absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual; that is, when they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal period. Property taxes, intergovernmental revenue, charges for services, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the Village.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Major Street Fund is used to account for the maintenance and construction of the Village's street system. This fund accounts for revenues provided by the Michigan Transportation Fund (MTF) Distribution, known as Public Act 51 of 1951.

The Library Fund accounts for the property taxes and other revenues and costs of maintaining the library.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water Fund accounts for the activities of the water distribution system.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund type:

The Internal Service Fund accounts for major machinery and equipment purchases and maintenance provided to other departments of the government on a cost reimbursement basis.

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government's water function and various other functions of the government. Eliminations of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Village's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance

Bank Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less when acquired. Investments are stated at fair value.

Receivables and Payables

In general, outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as "advances to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances."

All trade and property tax receivables are shown as net of allowance for uncollectible amounts. Property taxes are levied on each July 1st on the taxable valuation of property as of the preceding December 31st. Taxes are considered delinquent on September 15, at which time penalties and interest are assessed and collected by Schoolcraft Township.

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at cost, on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than \$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset's life are not capitalized.

Property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Capital Asset Classes	Lives
Buildings, additions, and improvements	15 to 50 years
Water lines	50 to 75 years
Roads	20 years
Sidewalks	20 years
Vehicles	3 to 5 years
Furniture	8 years
Books	5 Years

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended February 28, 2022

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, *deferred outflows of resources*, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will *not* be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The government did not have any items qualifying for this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Village has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenue from state revenue sharing. This amount is deferred and recognized as inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave)

It is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick and vacation pay benefits. All unused vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures.

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of the following: assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers of cash between the various Village funds are budgeted but reported separately from revenues and expenditures as operating transfers in or (out), unless they represent temporary advances that are to be repaid, in which case, they are carried as assets and liabilities of the advancing or borrowing funds.

Net Position and Fund Balances

The difference between fund assets and liabilities is "Net Position" on the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund statements and "Fund Balances" on governmental fund statements. Net Position are classified as "Net investment in capital assets," legally "Restricted" for a specific purpose, or "Unrestricted" and available for appropriation for the general purposes of the fund. In governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows:

- Nonspendable—Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are (a) not in spendable form; or (b) legally or contractually
 required to be maintained intact.
- Restricted—Amounts with constraints placed on the use of resources are either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as
 through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or; (b) imposed by law through
 constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
- Committed—Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action by Village Council ordinance or resolution, and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner.
- Assigned—Amounts neither restricted nor committed for which a government has a stated intended use as established by the Village Council or a body or official to which the Village Council has delegated the authority to assign amounts for specific purposes.
- Unassigned---Amounts that cannot be properly classified in one of the other four categories. The General Fund is the only fund
 that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. Unassigned balances also include negative balances in the
 governmental funds reporting resources restricted for specific programs.

Use of Restricted Resources

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources (net position), the Village's policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources and then toward unrestricted resources. In governmental funds, the Village's policy is to first apply the expenditure toward restricted fund balance and then to other, less-restrictive classifications - committed and then assigned fund balances before using unassigned fund balances.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended February 28, 2022

E. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Program Revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Property Taxes

The Village of Schoolcraft's property tax is levied on each July 1 on the taxable valuation of property as of the preceding December 31. It is the Village's policy to recognize revenues from the current tax levy in the current year when the proceeds of this levy are budgeted and made available for financing operations. Taxes are considered delinquent on September 15, at which time penalties and interest are assessed.

Proprietary Funds Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the proprietary funds relate to charges to customers for sales and services. The water fund also recognizes the portion of tap fees intended to recover current costs (e.g., labor and materials to hook up new customers) as operating revenue. The portion intended to recover the cost of the infrastructure is recognized as nonoperating revenue. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

NOTE 2-STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The Village is subject to the budgetary control requirements of the Uniform Budgeting Act (P.A. 621 of 1978, as amended). Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for the General Fund and all Special Revenue Funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Prior to year end, the Village Manager submits to the Village Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following March 1. Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments and the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance prior to March 1.

The budget document presents information by fund, function, activity, and line items. The legal level of budgetary control adopted by the governing body is the activity level. The Village Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items within an activity; however, any revisions that after the total expenditures of an activity must be approved by the Village Council.

Amounts encumbered for purchase orders, contracts, etc., are not tracked during the year. Budget appropriations are considered to be spent once the goods are delivered or the services rendered.

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Michigan Compiled Laws, Section 129.91, authorizes the Village to deposit and invest in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions, and savings and loan associations; bonds, securities and other direct obligations of the United States, or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; United States government or Federal agency repurchase agreements; bankers' acceptance of United States Banks; commercial paper rated by two standard rating agencies within the two highest classifications, which mature not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; obligations of the State of Michigan or its political subdivisions which are rated investment grade; and mutual funds composed of investment vehicles which are legal for direct investment by local units of government in Michigan. Financial institutions eligible for deposit of public funds must maintain an office in Michigan.

At year end, the Village's deposits and investments were reported in the basic financial statements in the following categories:

	sh and Cash quivalents
Governmental activities	\$ 2,178,284
Business-type activities	 471,603
Total	\$ 2,649,887

The breakdown between deposits and investments is as follows:

	Primary Government			
Bank deposits (checking and savings accounts, money markets and certificates of deposit) Petty cash and cash on hand	\$	2,649,531 356		
Total	\$	2,649,887		

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the Village's deposits may not be recovered. The bank balance of the Village's deposits is \$2,684,390, of which \$1,413,582 is covered by federal depository insurance. The remaining \$1,270,808 is uninsured and uncollateralized. The Village does not have a policy for custodial risk.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Village has no investments that fall under the Fair Value Measurement Standards.

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity of the primary government, for the year ended February 28, 2022, was as follows:

Governmental Activities	i	Beginning Balance	Additions		Disposais	Ending Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:						
Land	\$	130,000	\$ -	\$	- \$	130,000
Capital assets, being depreciated:						
Land improvements		-	29,998		-	29,998
Buildings, additions and improvements		1,487,917	=		-	1,487,917
Machinery and equipment		336,115	3,088		-	339,203
Furniture		148,283	-		-	148,283
Vehicles		275,888	46,185		22,105	299,968
Books		43,575	11,860		8,064	47,371
Infrastructure		1,218,863	41,988		-	1,260,851
Total capital assets, being depreciated		3,510,641	133,119		30,169	3,613,591
Less accumulated depreciation for: Land improvements		- 600 605	1,400		-	1,400 696,790
Buildings, additions and improvements		662,625	34,165 20.081		-	252,812
Machinery and equipment		232,731	20,001		-	148,281
Furniture		148,281	40 474		22,105	245,895
Vehicles		249,829	18,171		•	27,896
Books		28,282	7,678		8,064	591,598
Infrastructure		529,255	 62,343		20.400	
Total accumulated depreciation		1,851,003	 143,838		30,169	1,964,672
Total capital assets being depreciated, net	 	1,659,638	 (10,719)	_	-	1,648,919
Governmental activities capital assets, net	\$	1,789,638	\$ (10,719)	\$	- \$	1,778,919

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the governmental activities as follows:

Governmental Activities:	
General government	\$ 23,760
Public safety	14,870
Public works	77,864
Community and economic development	716
Recreation	 26,628
Total governmental activities	\$ 143.838

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

Business-type Activities	:	Beginning Balance	,	Additions		Disposals		Ending Balance
Capital assets, being depreciated:								
Buildings and additions	\$	1,138,648	\$	-	\$	- (\$	1,138,648
Machinery and equipment		9,350		-		-		9,350
Water system		1,861,545		30,020		1,479		1,890,086
Total capital assets being depreciated, net		3,009,543		30,020		1,479		3,038,084
Less accumulated depreciation for:								
Buildings and additions		668,646		22,762		_		691,408
Machinery and equipment		8,859		99		_		8,958
Water system		1,009,439		49,077		1,479		1,057,037
Total accumulated depreciation		1,686,944		71,938		1,479		1,757,403
Total capital assets being depreciated, net		1,322,599		(41,918)	<u> </u>	_		1,280,681
Business-type activities capital assets, net	\$	1,322,599	\$	(41,918)	\$	- \$	3	1,280,681

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the proprietary activities as follows:

Business-type Activities:	
Water	\$ 71,938

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The composition of interfund balances as of February 28, 2022 is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

	Receivable Fund:	
Payable Fund:		Water
General	\$	15,000

The outstanding balances between funds results mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term obligation activity, for the year ended February 28, 2022, can be summarized as follows:

		Beginning Balance		Additions		Reductions		Ending Balance		Due Within One Year	
Governmental Activities											
Bonds and notes payable:											
General obligation bonds	\$	355,000	\$	-		\$	50,000	\$	305,000	\$ 50,000	
Capital lease, Library copier		2,742		-			1,303		1,439	1,439	
Total bonds and notes payable		357,742		=			51,303		306,439	51,439	
Other liabilities:											
Compensated absences		50,420		-			7,286		43,134		
Total governmental activities	\$	408,162	\$	-		\$	58,589	\$	349,573	\$ 51,439	
Business-type Activities Other liabilities: Compensated absences	\$	8,648	\$	7	⁷ 50	\$	_	\$	9,398	\$ _	

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

General Obligation Bonds

The government issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Governmental activities:

\$525,000 Capital Improvement Refunding Bonds (LTGO) dated March 28, 2017, payable in annual installments of \$35,000 to \$55,000 through November 2027 with interest of 2.45%.

305,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above obligation are as follows:

	Governmental Activities							
February 28,	Principal		Interest			Total		
2023	\$	50,000	\$	7,472	\$	57,472		
2024		50,000		6,248		56,248		
2025		50,000		5,022		55,022		
2026		50,000		3,798		53,798		
2027		50,000		2,572		52,572		
2028		55,000		1,348		56,348		
Totals	\$	305,000	\$	26,460	\$	331,460		

The Village paid \$8,914 in interest expense for the year.

In March of 2017, the Village refunded the 2007 General Obligation Capital Improvement Bonds (Limited Tax), dated July 30, 2007 by issuing \$525,000 of the 2017 Capital Improvement Refunding Bonds (LTGO), dated March 28, 2017. The bond proceeds have been deposited into the Escrow Fund for the Refunded Bonds to ensure the payment of the old bonds.

NOTE 7 - LEASES

The Village conducts a portion of its operations with leased equipment. A lease for a copier requires monthly payments of \$127 per month through February 2023. The copier held under a lease is included in the statement of net position with a cost of \$5,955 and accumulated depreciation of \$4,764 as of February 28, 2022. Total expense under this obligation was \$1,519 for the year ended February 28, 2022.

The following is a schedule of annual future minimum lease payments required under the lease, which had an initial or remaining non-cancelable lease term in excess of one year as of February 28, 2022:

Year Ending	Pt	incipal	Interest		Total	
2023	\$	1,439	\$	79	\$	1,518

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

NOTE 8 - RECEIVABLES

In the governmental funds balance sheet, amounts are aggregated into a single accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) line for certain funds and aggregated columns. The detail for this line item (Receivables, net) is as follows:

Receivables, net	G	eneral	DDA	Library	Total
Taxes	\$	12,580 \$	1,107 \$	27,344 \$	41,031

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Village of Schoolcraft is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions and employee injuries (workers' compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The Village of Schoolcraft obtains commercial insurance coverage for all claims. Settled claims relating to the commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SYSTEMS

The Village provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a defined contribution plan. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan, plus investment earnings. The plan permits employees to defer a portion of their current compensation until the employee terminates employment. The plan is administered by third-party trustees. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the Village Council. The contribution by the Village is 3% of each employee's and 10% of manager's gross earnings. No contribution is required by the employee. Total contributions for each employee (and interest allocated to the employee's account) are immediately 100% vested. The Village is not a trustee of the plan, nor is the Village responsible for investment management of plan assets.

The Village made contributions of \$19,621 for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2022.

NOTE 11 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Village has no post-employment benefit plans.

NOTE 12 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the Village's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and personal benefits. All vacation pay and personal time is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended February 28, 2022

NOTE 13 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

The Village of Schoolcraft is a member of the South Kalamazoo County Fire Authority. The Authority was established under Michigan Public Act No. 57 of 1998 to jointly provide fire protection services within the member municipalities in southern Kalamazoo County, Michigan. The Authority is comprised of the Villages of Schoolcraft and Vicksburg, and the Townships of Brady, Prairie Ronde, Schoolcraft, and Wakeshma.

In compliance with the terms in its operating agreement, the Village reimburses the Authority for its share of the services provided. The governing documents of the Authority do not explicitly convey an equity interest to its members. The Village is unaware of any indication that the Authority is accumulating significant financial resources or is experiencing fiscal stress that may cause a benefit or burden on the Village in the near future. Payments to the Authority during the year amounted to \$60,938 for its operation.

The South Kalamazoo County Fire Authority receives an annual audit of its financial statements by an independent certified public accountant. A copy of the annual audit is kept on file at the Village of Schoolcraft office, and can be reviewed upon request. Summary financial information is as follows:

At March 31	, 2021		Year ended I	March 3	1, 2021
Total Assets	\$	2,001,205			
Total Liabilities	\$	17,250	Revenues	\$	685,752
Total Net Position		1,983,955	Expenses		421,786
Total Liabilities and Net Position	\$	2,001,205	Change in Net Position	\$	263,966

NOTE 14 - PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENTS

Act 198, the Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts Act, was adopted in the State of Michigan as a means of providing a stimulus in the form of significant tax incentives to industry for the purpose of creating new jobs and maintaining existing jobs. It allows an obsolete property, when replaced or restored, to have its assessed value frozen at the level prior to the improvement for a maximum of twelve years; and new plants to receive a fifty percent exemption from property tax on the taxable value of new real and personal properties, also for a maximum period of twelve years.

The Village Council has granted property tax abatements. The effect of the abatements is to reduce property tax revenue for the Village's General Fund by approximately \$8,050

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements. Such evaluation was performed through August 24, 2022, the date the financial statements were approved for issuance. There were no subsequent events that should be accounted for or require disclosure in the accompanying financial statements.

Required Sup	plemental	Information
--------------	-----------	-------------

General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule For the year ended February 28, 2022

	Budgeted Amounts						
		Original Fi		Final		Actual	Variance with Final Budget
EVENUES							
Taxes:							
Property	\$	636,000	\$	636,000	\$	651,774	
Industrial facility tax		6,800		6,800		24,058	17,258
Total taxes		642,800		642,800		675,832	33,032
Licenses and permits:							
Business licenses and permits		1,550		1,550		1,519	(31
Franchise fees		11,000		11,000		10,575	(425)
Non-business licenses and permits		4,000		23,000		12,660	(10,340)
Total licenses and permits		16,550		35,550		24,754	(10,796)
State grants:							
State revenue sharing		155,654		155,654		180,858	25,204
Other state grants		14,700		15,600		12,166	(3,434)
Total state grants		170,354		171 <u>,254</u>		193,024	21,770
Charges for services:							
Fees		14,000		12,800		11,014	(1,786)
Services rendered		9,280		880		685	(195
Total charges for services		23,280		13,680		11,699	(1,981
Interest and rents:							
Interest		15,000		5,000		2,214	(2,786)
Other revenue:							
Contributions and donations		3,500		3,200		2,125	(1,075
Miscellaneous		100		100		191	91
Total other revenue		3,600		3,300		2,316	(984)
otal revenues		871,584		871,584		909,839	38,255

General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule For the year ended February 28, 2022

		Budgeted Amounts					
	Original		Final		Actual	Variance with Final Budget	
EXPENDITURES							
Current:							
General government:							
Village council	\$	15,466	\$	16,334	\$	15,170	\$ 1,164
Manager		116,661		122,368		120,077	2,291
Clerk		20,150		8,487		8,255	232
Treasurer		66,217		60,546		57,537	3,009
Municipal complex		34,443		32,203		32,036	167
Total general government		252,937		239,938		233,075	6,863
Public safety:							
Police		406,396		395,336		382,084	13,252
Fire		60,926		60,946		60,938	8
Building inspection		6,500		8,870		8,838	32
Total public safety		473,822		465,152		451,860	13,292
Public works:							
,		126 600		444.004		111,107	2,984
Department of public works		136,609		114,091			
Sanitation		3,934		3,934		2,683	1,251
Total public works		140,543		118,025		113,790	4,235

General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule For the year ended February 28, 2022

	Budgeted Amounts						
		Original		Final		Actual	ce with Budget
Community and economic development					-		
Planning	\$	3,550	\$	6,930	\$	6,917	\$ 13
Zoning		6,350		9,230		9,211	19
Community development		13,025		11,025		8,826	 2,199
Total community and economic development		22,925		27,185		24,954	 2,231
Recreation and culture:							
Parks and recreation department		24,951		27,051		22,230	 4,821
Debt service							
Principal		54,350		51,250		50,000	1,250
Interest		8,698		8,698		8,697	1
Total debt service		63,048		59,948		58,697	1,251
Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures		978,226 (106,642)		937,299		904,606 5,233	32,693 70,948
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)							
Sale of capital assets		-		_		3,760	3,760
Insurance recoveries		-		_		5,000	5,000
Total other financing sources (uses)		-		_		8,760	8,760
Net change in fund balance		(106,642)		(65,715)		13,993	79,708
Fund balance-beginning		880,876		880,876		880,876	-
Prior period adjustment		-		-		(7,704)	(7,704)
Fund balance-restated		880,876		880,876		873,172	(7,704)
Fund balance-ending	\$	774,234	\$	815,161	\$	887,165	\$ 72,004

Major Street Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule For the year ended February 28, 2022

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	_	Budgeted A	mounts	-	
		Original	Final	Actual	Variance with Final Budget
REVENUES					
Michigan transportation funds	\$	176,479 \$	176,479 \$	184,408	\$ 7,929
Interest		750	750	608	(142)
Total revenues		177,229	177,229	185,016	7,787
EXPENDITURES					
Current:					
Public works:					
Construction of streets		-	42,000	41,250	750
Preservation of streets		27,777	13,367	13,202	165
Traffic services		22,098	22,898	22,855	43
Winter maintenance		7,496	8,166	8,119	47
Administration and engineering		933	1,508	1,484	24
Total expenditures		58,304	87,939	86,910	1,029
Net change in fund balance		118,925	89,290	98,106	8,816
Fund balance-beginning		465,924	465,924	465,924	-
Fund balance-ending	\$	584,849 \$	555,214 \$	564,030	\$ 8,816

Library Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule For the year ended February 28, 2022

		udgeted Imounts			
	Or	iginal and Final	Actual	Variance with Final Budget	2021
REVENUES					
Taxes	\$	179,128	\$ 175,417	• • • •	181,125
State grants		4,400	5,190	790	6,719
Contributions from local units		6,500	6,801	301	6,561
Charges for services		2,600	1,088	(1,512)	888
Fines and forfeits		100	99	(1)	64
Interest and rents		950	1,352	402	1,203
Other revenue		9,400	10,451	1,051	15,058
Total revenues		203,078	200,398	(2,680)	211,618
EXPENDITURES Current: Library		212.218	196,424	15,794	150,607
Debt service:		_ ,_,	,	•	•
Principal		1,594	1,594	_	1,362
Interest		216	216	-	339
Total expenditures		214,028	198,234	15,794	152,308
Net change in fund balances		(10,950)	2,164	13,114	59,310
Fund balances-beginning		310,865	310,865	<u>-</u>	251,555
Fund balances-ending	\$	299,915	\$ 313,029	\$ 13,114 \$	310,865

Other Supplemental I	Information
----------------------	-------------

Nonmajor Governmental Funds Combining Balance Sheet

February 28, 2022

		Special			
	Lo	cal Street	Dov Deve	vntown lopment thority	 Total
ASSETS					
Cash	\$	104,075	\$	60,509	\$ 164,584
Receivables, net		-		1,107	1,107
Intergovernmental receivable		9,897		-	9,897
Prepaids		58 <u>2</u>			 582
Total assets		114,554		61,616	176,170
Accounts payable FUND BALANCES Nonspendable:		1,585		75	1,660
Prepaid items Restricted:		582			582
Streets Community and economic		112,387		-	112,387
development		-		61,541	 61,541
Total fund balances		112,969		61,541	 <u>174,510</u>
Total liabilities and fund balances	\$	114,554	\$	61,616	\$ 176,170

Nonmajor Governmental Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances For the year ended February 28, 2022

		Special			
	Lo	cal Street	De	owntown velopment Authority	Total
REVENUES					
Taxes	\$	-	\$	27,070	\$ 27,070
State grants		57,923		- ·	57,923
Interest and rents		54		29	83
Miscellaneous		443			443
Total revenues		58,420		27,099	 85,519
EXPENDITURES					
Public works		18,919		-	18,919
Community and economic development				23,131	23,131
Total expenditures		18,919		23,131	42,050
Net change in fund balances		39,501		3,968	43,469
Fund balances-beginning		73,468		57,573	131,041
Fund balances-ending	\$		\$		\$ 174,510

1]
Samuel Control
[]
1,
.